

Journal of the Senate

FORTY-FIFTH DAY

SENATE CHAMBER, TOPEKA, KANSAS
Monday, March 21, 2016, 10:00 a.m.

The Senate was called to order by Vice President Jeff King.
The roll was called with 39 senators present.
Senator Love was excused.
Invocation by Reverend Cecil Washington, Jr.:

Heavenly Father, many of us call this Easter Week. A week in which the historical death, burial and resurrection of Jesus Christ is given plenty of attention. In John 12:23-24, Jesus said, that a grain of wheat remains just one grain, and never becomes more, unless it falls into the ground...is buried and dies. And from that death...from that burial, springs a wealth of new life and fruitfulness to benefit many. Would You grant to each of us, during this week, a time of personal reflection? Are there some things in our lives we need to crucify? Scripture teaches that it was in harmony with Your will that Jesus be crucified. So, what would be in harmony with Your will for us to crucify? During this passion week, give us a passion for personal improvement. During this week, starting even right now, reveal to us the things we might be keeping alive, that need to die and be buried, so that our best can blossom? If there are things going on...if there are attitudes and actions that we need to put a stop to, convict us of the things that need to die, convince us to bury them and convert us to personal and collective fruitfulness. Thank You Lord, for what You shall do in us, that You may do more through us. In Jesus' name, Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Vice President King.

POINT OF PERSONAL PRIVILEGE

Senator Knox rose on a Point of Personal Privilege to welcome Frank Foster to the Kansas Senate and honor him for his military service. He is one of a small number of Americans still living who has served in the United States Armed Forces during World War II, the Korean War and the Vietnam War. He served in the U.S. Navy as a mechanic for 25 years, from 1942 through 1967. He spent time in Pearl Harbor, Australia, Hong Kong, China, Singapore, Saudi Arabia, the Suez Canal, the Sahara Desert, the Mediterranean Sea, Gibraltar, Morocco, Norway, England, the Panama Canal, Korea, Vietnam and Japan. Frank and his wife Norma instilled in their five children a deep love and respect for their country and they all went on to serve in the U.S. Armed Forces. Their son, Michael, served in the U.S. and is retired Army National Guard. Son, Greg, attended the U.S. Naval Academy and served in the Navy Reserves. Son, James, retired from the U.S. Army Special Forces. Son, Charles, retired from the U.S. Air Force.

Daughter, Michelle, served 8 years in the U.S. Navy. The freedom we enjoy in America has come at a very high price for those serving in the military, especially in times of conflict.

Guests introduced were Frank Foster, Norma Foster, Charles Foster and Daffney Foster.

The senators honored Mr. Foster and guests with a standing ovation.

POINT OF PERSONAL PRIVILEGE

Senator Francisco rose on a Point of Personal Privilege to recognize Jazmyne McNair as the Kansas Youth of the Year representing the Boys and Girls Club of Kansas. The Youth of the Year program promotes and celebrates young people's service to their club, community and family; academic performance; moral character; and public speaking abilities.

MESSAGE FROM THE GOVERNOR

SB 423 has been signed into law March 18, 2016.

MESSAGE FROM THE HOUSE

Announcing passage of **HB 2576**, **HB 2595**.

Announcing passage of **SB 358**.

The House nonconcurrs in Senate amendments to **S Sub HB 2131**, requests a conference and has appointed Representatives Seiwert, Alford and Kuether as conferees on the part of the House.

INTRODUCTION OF HOUSE BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

HB 2576, **HB 2595** were thereupon introduced and read by title.

INTRODUCTION OF ORIGINAL MOTIONS AND SENATE RESOLUTIONS

Senators Hensley, Wagle, Arpke, Baumgardner, Bowers, Bruce, Faust-Goudeau, Haley, Hawk, Holland, Kelly, King, LaTurner, Longbine, Love, Masterson, Olson, Pettey, Pyle, V. Schmidt, Smith and Wolf introduced the following Senate resolution, which was read:

SENATE RESOLUTION No. 1783—

A RESOLUTION congratulating and commending the Kansas City Royals baseball organization on their World Championship 2015 season.

WHEREAS, The Kansas City Royals are the 2015 World Series Champions, earning the title of World Champions of Major League Baseball; and

WHEREAS, The Kansas City Royals are also the 2015 American League Central Division Champions and won the 2015 American League pennant for the second year in a row; and

WHEREAS, The Kansas City Royals won an American League leading 95 games, and won 11 more games in the postseason, culminating in a dominant World Series victory over the New York Mets in five games, in the best-of-seven annual championship classic, earning the Royals their first championship since 1985; and

WHEREAS, The 2015 World Series matchup between the Royals and the Mets

featured the first-ever Fall Classic between two of Major League Baseball's expansion franchises; and

WHEREAS, Game one of the World Series was played on October 27, 2015, which exactly 30 years prior to such day, on October 27, 1985, the Kansas City Royals won game seven and their first World Series Championship; and

WHEREAS, With the first pitch in the bottom of the first inning of the first game of the 2015 World Series, Royals shortstop, Alcides Escobar hit the first inside-the-park home run by a lead-off hitter in a World Series game since 1903; and

WHEREAS, The opening game also set the tone for this memorable series when Royals All-Star Alex Gordon sent the game into extra innings in the ninth inning, becoming only the fifth player in history to tie a World Series game with a ninth-inning home run. The Royals went on to a dramatic victory in the 14-inning contest, which matched the longest game in World Series history; and

WHEREAS, The Kansas City Royals catcher, Salvador Perez, was chosen as the Most Valuable Player of the 2015 World Series, for being the player selected as having the most impact on the performance of the Royals in the World Series; and

WHEREAS, Time and time again, the Kansas City Royals found a way to rally in late innings to win a critical game and turn the improbable into the probable, which was no more apparent than in the championship-clinching game five of the World Series, where the Royals scored two runs in the ninth inning, and scored five runs in the 12th inning, for the victory; and

WHEREAS, Named to the 2015 American League All-Star team were seven Kansas City Royals: Salvador Perez, Alcides Escobar, Lorenzo Cain and Alex Gordon, as starters, and Mike Moustakas, Kelvin Herrera and Wade Davis; and

WHEREAS, The owners, manager, coaches, trainers, other associated organizational persons, and most of all, the players of the Kansas City Royals baseball organization are to be congratulated and commended for their outstanding efforts in earning the title of 2015 World Champions of Major League Baseball: Now, therefore,

Be it resolved by the Senate of the State of Kansas: That the Kansas City Royals baseball club and all persons connected therewith, including all Royals fans, be congratulated on their outstanding 2015 Major League baseball season, and winning their second World Championship; and

Be it further resolved: That the Secretary of the Senate shall send enrolled copies of this resolution to the Kansas City Royals baseball club.

On emergency motion of Senator Hensley **SR 1783** was adopted unanimously.

Guests introduce were Toby Cook, VP Publicity; Curt Nelson, Director Royals Hall of Fame; and Dave Webster.

The senators honored the guests and team with a standing ovation.

Senator Petersen introduced the following Senate resolution, which was read:
SENATE RESOLUTION No. 1782—

A RESOLUTION honoring and commending
Officer Larry Hampton for his bravery in the line of duty.

WHEREAS, Officer Larry Hampton was recently awarded the Derby Police Department's Medal of Valor for his effort during the pursuit of a violent felon who was fleeing from an armed robbery and shooting on August 11, 2015; and

WHEREAS, Julie Dombo, a retired middle school counselor in the Haysville School District, was shot multiple times during the robbery and suffered devastating injuries that resulted in the amputation of all four of her limbs. During the subsequent pursuit, the suspect fired upon Officer Hampton three times. Officer Hampton continued to pursue the suspect, without concern for his own safety, in an effort to apprehend the suspect and prevent additional harm to civilians. Due in large part to Officer Hampton's level-headed and relentless pursuit, the suspect was soon captured, and no additional civilians were harmed; and

WHEREAS, Commenting recently about his award, Officer Hampton said, "It is an honor to be recognized by my peers for this award. My colleagues and I are ready each and every day to serve the citizens of Derby."; and

WHEREAS, Regarding the victim of the shooting, Officer Hampton said, "Julie Dombo is an extraordinary person, and we should recognize her for her courage. She truly is an inspiration for all of us." Julie has been positive and upbeat during her recovery process, and her family has created a GoFundMe page to help cover her increased expenses; and

WHEREAS, Officer Hampton has been a member of the Derby Police Department since May 14, 1998. During his 17 years at Derby PD, Officer Hampton has been assigned to the Patrol Division. In addition to regular patrol duties, Officer Hampton has worked as a Field Training Officer, training new police officers to perform and understand the important tasks and concepts of the job; and

WHEREAS, Officer Hampton was born and raised in Kansas. In 1974, he joined the United States Army. He has served in three different deployments to Germany. In 1994, Officer Hampton retired from the Army and took a job with Pinkerton Security, and, in 1995, he joined the Kansas Department of Corrections as a guard at the El Dorado Correctional Facility (ECF). While serving at ECF, Officer Hampton was a member of the Special Security Team, a tactical unit within the prison. Officer Hampton remained at ECF until joining Derby PD in 1998; and

WHEREAS, Police officers, like Officer Hampton, are an essential part of our nation's society. They risk their lives on a daily basis to keep citizens safe and out of harm's way: Now, therefore,

Be it resolved by the Senate of the State of Kansas: That we honor and commend Officer Larry Hampton for his exceptional bravery in the line of duty. The actions he took to protect the people of Derby are deeply appreciated by all Kansans; and

Be it further resolved: That the Secretary of the Senate shall send an enrolled copy of this resolution to Officer Larry Hampton.

On emergency motion of Senator Petersen **SR 1782** was adopted unanimously.

CONSIDERATION OF MOTIONS TO CONCUR AND NONCONCUR

On motion of Senator Petersen the Senate nonconcurrent in the House amendments to **SB 318** and requested a conference committee be appointed.

The Vice President appointed Senators Olson, Petersen and Francisco as a conference committee on the part of the Senate.

ORIGINAL MOTION

On motion of Senator Petersen, the Senate acceded to the request of the House for a conference on **HB 2131**.

The Vice President appointed Senators Olson, Petersen and Francisco as conferees on the part of the Senate.

On motion of Senator Bruce the Senate recessed until 2:00 p.m.

MESSAGE FROM THE HOUSE

Announcing passage of **SB 329**, **SB 330**, **SB 412**.

Announcing passage of **SB 367**, as amended.

Announcing passage of **SB 249**, as amended by **H Sub SB 249**; **SB 255**, as amended by **H Sub SB 255**.

CONSIDERATION OF MOTIONS TO CONCUR AND NONCONCUR

On motion of Senator Smith the Senate nonconcurred in the House amendments to **H Sub SB 255** and requested a conference committee be appointed.

The Vice President appointed Senators King, Smith and Haley as a conference committee on the part of the Senate.

On motion of Senator Smith the Senate nonconcurred in the House amendments to **SB 367** and requested a conference committee be appointed.

The Vice President appointed Senators Smith, Knox and Pettey as a conference committee on the part of the Senate.

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

The Committee on **Natural Resources** recommends **HB 2479**, as amended by House Committee, be amended by substituting a new bill to be designated as "Senate Substitute for HOUSE BILL NO. 2479," as follows:

"Senate Substitute for HOUSE BILL NO. 2479
By Committee on Natural Resources

"AN ACT concerning agriculture; relating to noxious weeds; counties; state agencies; amending K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 2-1314 and 2-1319 and repealing the existing sections.";

And the substitute bill be passed.

Committee on **Public Health and Welfare** recommends **SB 465**, **SB 477** be passed.

Also, **SB 489** be amended on page 1, in line 7, before "Section" by inserting "New"; also in line 7, by striking "12" and inserting "11"; in line 9, before "Sec." by inserting "New"; in line 11, by striking all after the first period; in line 24, by striking all after "means"; by striking all in lines 25 and 26; in line 27, by striking all before the period and inserting "":

(1) For a patient 21 years of age or older, cannabis plant material that is no more than 1% tetrahydrocannabinol by weight and no less than 15% cannabidiol by weight or an extract, mixture or preparation containing cannabis plant material that is no more than 1% tetrahydrocannabinol by weight and no less than 15% cannabidiol by weight; or

(2) for a patient under 21 years of age, cannabis plant material that is no more than 0.3% tetrahydrocannabinol by weight and no less than 15% cannabidiol by weight or an extract, mixture or preparation containing cannabis plant material that is no more than 0.3% tetrahydrocannabinol by weight and no less than 15% cannabidiol by weight";

Also on page 1, in line 28, by striking all after "(f)"; by striking all in lines 29 through 32;

On page 2, in line 6, after "surgery" by inserting ", who is certified by the board to issue a written certification for medical hemp preparations pursuant to section 12, and amendments thereto, and who is practicing in a healthcare facility licensed by the state of Kansas"; in line 7, by striking all after "means"; by striking all in line 8; in line 9, by striking all before the period and inserting "":

(1) For a patient 21 years of age or older, Alzheimer's disease, cancer, multiple sclerosis, post-traumatic stress disorder or a condition causing seizures, including those characteristic of epilepsy; or

(2) for a patient under 21 years of age, a condition causing seizures, including those characteristic of epilepsy";

Also on page 2, by striking all in lines 10 through 20; by striking all in lines 23 through 25;

And by redesignating subsections, paragraphs, subparagraphs and clauses accordingly;

On page 3, in line 1, before "Sec." by inserting "New";

On page 4, in line 17, before "Sec." by inserting "New";

On page 5, in line 17, by striking all after "personnel"; in line 18, by striking all before "to"; in line 25, before "Sec." by inserting "New"; in line 28, after the semicolon by inserting "and"; in line 29, by striking all after "(2)"; by striking all in lines 30 through 43;

On page 6, by striking all in lines 1 through 31; in line 32, by striking "(9)"; also in line 32, by striking "registration"; in line 33, by striking all before "registration"; also in line 33, by striking all after "cardholders"; in line 34, by striking "establishments that" and inserting "who"; in line 40, by striking "no less than a reasonable 60-day supply" and inserting "a 30-day supply with no refills";

On page 7, in line 13, before "Sec." by inserting "New"; in line 14, by striking the comma and inserting "and"; also in line 14, by striking all after "cards"; in line 15, by striking all before "subject"; by striking all in lines 25 through 29; in line 33, before "Sec." by inserting "New"; in line 42, by striking all after "(1)"; by striking all in line 43;

On page 8, in line 5, by striking all after "(c)"; by striking all in lines 6 through 42; in line 43, by striking the second "or";

On page 9, in line 1, by striking all before "shall"; in line 5, by striking all before "shall"; in line 8, by striking all after the second "cardholder"; in line 9, by striking all before "shall"; in line 24, before "Sec." by inserting "New";

And by redesignating subsections, paragraphs, subparagraphs and clauses accordingly;

Also on page 9, by striking all in lines 36 through 43;

By striking all on pages 10 and 11;

On page 12, by striking all in lines 1 through 8; following line 8, by inserting:

"New Sec. 10. (a) Any patient who is a cardholder pursuant to this act shall obtain or receive medical hemp preparations only from a facility or organization located and operating outside the state of Kansas that is verified and approved by the secretary of health and environment. Possession of medical hemp preparations obtained in violation of this subsection shall constitute the unlawful possession of a controlled substance as

defined by K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 21-5706(b)(7), and amendments thereto, and be subject to the penalties prescribed therein.

(b) The secretary of health and environment shall adopt rules and regulations regarding the verification and approval of dispensing facilities or organizations located outside the state of Kansas from which patient cardholders may obtain or receive medical hemp preparations. Such rules and regulations shall include, at a minimum, requirements that the dispensing facility or organization has procedures to:

- (1) Maintain accurate recordkeeping;
- (2) verify a patient carholder's documentation purporting to allow such cardholder to obtain or possess medical hemp preparations;
- (3) package and label accurately any medical hemp preparations dispensed by the organization or facility, including sealing the preparations in a child-resistant package and indicating the preparation's ingredients and percentages of tetrahydrocannabinol and cannabidiol by weight;
- (4) test samples of medical hemp preparations randomly to verify accuracy of labeling for contents and potency; and
- (5) initiate and facilitate mandatory and voluntary recalls of medical hemp preparations.";

Also on page 12, following line 12 by inserting:

"New Sec. 12. (a) There is hereby established the designation of medical hemp preparation certification. The board is authorized to issue a medical hemp preparation certification to any person who holds an active license to practice medicine and surgery issued by the board and who makes written application for such certification on a form provided by the board and remits the fee established by K.S.A. 65-2852, and amendments thereto. The board shall require every holder of a medical hemp preparation certification, in writing, to acknowledge and agree to abide by the guidelines set forth in the Kansas board of healing arts policy statement regarding experimental treatments.

(b) The medical hemp preparation certification shall be canceled on the date established by rules and regulations of the board which may provide renewal throughout the year on a continuing basis. Any certification issued under this section shall expire no later than one year after the date of issuance.

(c) The provisions of K.S.A. 65-2809, and amendments thereto, providing for notice of cancellation, cancellation, renewal and reinstatement of a license shall apply to any medical hemp preparation certification issued under this section.

(d) The board shall adopt rules and regulations as may be necessary to administer the provisions of this section.

(e) This section shall be part of and supplemental to the Kansas healing arts act.

Sec. 13. K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 40-3403 is hereby amended to read as follows: 40-3403. (a) For the purpose of paying damages for personal injury or death arising out of the rendering of or the failure to render professional services by a health care provider, self-insurer or inactive health care provider subsequent to the time that such health care provider or self-insurer has qualified for coverage under the provisions of this act, there is hereby established the health care stabilization fund. The fund shall be held in trust in the state treasury and accounted for separately from other state funds. The board of governors shall administer the fund or contract for the administration of the fund with an insurance company authorized to do business in this state.

(b) (1) There is hereby created a board of governors which shall be composed of such members and shall have such powers, duties and functions as are prescribed by this act. The board of governors shall:

(A) Administer the fund and exercise and perform other powers, duties and functions required of the board under the health care provider insurance availability act;

(B) provide advice, information and testimony to the appropriate licensing or disciplinary authority regarding the qualifications of a health care provider;

(C) prepare and publish, on or before October 1 of each year, a summary of the fund's activity during the preceding fiscal year, including, but not limited to, the amount collected from surcharges, the highest and lowest surcharges assessed, the amount paid from the fund, the number of judgments paid from the fund, the number of settlements paid from the fund and the amount in the fund at the end of the fiscal year; and

(D) have the authority to grant temporary exemptions from the provisions of K.S.A. 40-3402 and 40-3404, and amendments thereto, to health care providers who have exceptional circumstances and verify in writing that the health care provider will not render professional services in this state during the period of exemption. Whenever the board grants such an exemption, the board shall notify the state agency which licenses the exempted health care provider.

(2) The board shall consist of 11 persons appointed by the commissioner of insurance, as provided by this subsection ~~(b)~~ and as follows:

(A) Three members who are licensed to practice medicine and surgery in Kansas who are doctors of medicine and who are on a list of nominees submitted to the commissioner by the Kansas medical society;

(B) three members who are representatives of Kansas hospitals and who are on a list of nominees submitted to the commissioner by the Kansas hospital association;

(C) two members who are licensed to practice medicine and surgery in Kansas who are doctors of osteopathic medicine and who are on a list of nominees submitted to the commissioner by the Kansas association of osteopathic medicine;

(D) one member who is licensed to practice chiropractic in Kansas and who is on a list of nominees submitted to the commissioner by the Kansas chiropractic association;

(E) one member who is a licensed professional nurse authorized to practice as a registered nurse anesthetist who is on a list of nominees submitted to the commissioner by the Kansas association of nurse anesthetists.

(F) one member who is a representative of adult care homes who is on a list of nominees submitted to the commissioner by statewide associations comprised of members who represent adult care homes.

(3) When a vacancy occurs in the membership of the board of governors created by this act, the commissioner shall appoint a successor of like qualifications from a list of three nominees submitted to the commissioner by the professional society or association prescribed by this section for the category of health care provider required for the vacant position on the board of governors. All appointments made shall be for a term of office of four years, but no member shall be appointed for more than two successive four-year terms. Each member shall serve until a successor is appointed and qualified. Whenever a vacancy occurs in the membership of the board of governors created by this act for any reason other than the expiration of a member's term of office, the commissioner shall appoint a successor of like qualifications to fill the unexpired term. In each case of a vacancy occurring in the membership of the board of governors, the

commissioner shall notify the professional society or association which represents the category of health care provider required for the vacant position and request a list of three nominations of health care providers from which to make the appointment.

(4) The board of governors shall organize in July of each year and shall elect a chairperson and vice-chairperson from among its membership. Meetings shall be called by the chairperson or by a written notice signed by three members of the board.

(5) The board of governors, in addition to other duties imposed by this act, shall study and evaluate the operation of the fund and make such recommendations to the legislature as may be appropriate to ensure the viability of the fund.

(6) (A) The board shall appoint an executive director who shall be in the unclassified service under the Kansas civil service act and may employ attorneys and other employees who shall also be in the unclassified service under the Kansas civil service act. Such executive director, attorneys and other employees shall receive compensation fixed by the board, in accordance with appropriation acts of the legislature, not subject to approval of the governor.

(B) The board may provide all office space, services, equipment, materials and supplies, and all budgeting, personnel, purchasing and related management functions required by the board in the exercise of the powers, duties and functions imposed or authorized by the health care provider insurance availability act or may enter into a contract with the commissioner of insurance for the provision, by the commissioner, of all or any part thereof.

(7) The commissioner shall:

(A) Provide technical and administrative assistance to the board of governors with respect to administration of the fund upon request of the board;

(B) provide such expertise as the board may reasonably request with respect to evaluation of claims or potential claims.

(c) Except as otherwise provided by any other provision of this act, the fund shall be liable to pay:

(1) Any amount due from a judgment or settlement which is in excess of the basic coverage liability of all liable resident health care providers or resident self-insurers for any personal injury or death arising out of the rendering of or the failure to render professional services within or without this state;

(2) subject to the provisions of subsections (f) and (m), any amount due from a judgment or settlement which is in excess of the basic coverage liability of all liable nonresident health care providers or nonresident self-insurers for any such injury or death arising out of the rendering or the failure to render professional services within this state but in no event shall the fund be obligated for claims against nonresident health care providers or nonresident self-insurers who have not complied with this act or for claims against nonresident health care providers or nonresident self-insurers that arose outside of this state;

(3) subject to the provisions of subsections (f) and (m), any amount due from a judgment or settlement against a resident inactive health care provider for any such injury or death arising out of the rendering of or failure to render professional services;

(4) subject to the provisions of subsections (f) and (m), any amount due from a judgment or settlement against a nonresident inactive health care provider for any injury or death arising out of the rendering or failure to render professional services within this state, but in no event shall the fund be obligated for claims against: (A) Nonresident

inactive health care providers who have not complied with this act; or (B) nonresident inactive health care providers for claims that arose outside of this state, unless such health care provider was a resident health care provider or resident self-insurer at the time such act occurred;

(5) subject to ~~subsection (b)~~ of K.S.A. 40-3411**(b)**, and amendments thereto, reasonable and necessary expenses for attorney fees, depositions, expert witnesses and other costs incurred in defending the fund against claims, which expenditures shall not be subject to the provisions of K.S.A. 75-3738 through 75-3744, and amendments thereto;

(6) any amounts expended for reinsurance obtained to protect the best interests of the fund purchased by the board of governors, which purchase shall be subject to the provisions of K.S.A. 75-3738 through 75-3744, and amendments thereto, but shall not be subject to the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4101, and amendments thereto;

(7) reasonable and necessary actuarial expenses incurred in administering the act, including expenses for any actuarial studies contracted for by the legislative coordinating council, which expenditures shall not be subject to the provisions of K.S.A. 75-3738 through 75-3744, and amendments thereto;

(8) periodically to the plan or plans, any amount due pursuant to ~~subsection (a)(3)~~ of K.S.A. 40-3413**(a)(3)**, and amendments thereto;

(9) reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by the board of governors in the administration of the fund or in the performance of other powers, duties or functions of the board under the health care provider insurance availability act;

(10) surcharge refunds payable when the notice of cancellation requirements of K.S.A. 40-3402, and amendments thereto, are met;

(11) subject to ~~subsection (b)~~ of K.S.A. 40-3411**(b)**, and amendments thereto, reasonable and necessary expenses for attorney fees and other costs incurred in defending a person engaged or who was engaged in residency training or the private practice corporations or foundations and their full-time physician faculty employed by the university of Kansas medical center or any nonprofit corporation organized to administer the graduate medical education programs of community hospitals or medical care facilities affiliated with the university of Kansas school of medicine from claims for personal injury or death arising out of the rendering of or the failure to render professional services by such health care provider;

(12) notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (m), any amount due from a judgment or settlement for an injury or death arising out of the rendering of or failure to render professional services by a person engaged or who was engaged in residency training or the private practice corporations or foundations and their full-time physician faculty employed by the university of Kansas medical center or any nonprofit corporation organized to administer the graduate medical education programs of community hospitals or medical care facilities affiliated with the university of Kansas school of medicine;

(13) subject to the provisions of K.S.A. 65-429, and amendments thereto, reasonable and necessary expenses for the development and promotion of risk management education programs and for the medical care facility licensure and risk management survey functions carried out under K.S.A. 65-429, and amendments thereto;

(14) notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (m), any amount, but not less

than the required basic coverage limits, owed pursuant to a judgment or settlement for any injury or death arising out of the rendering of or failure to render professional services by a person, other than a person described in ~~paragraph (12) of this subsection (c)(12)~~, who was engaged in a postgraduate program of residency training approved by the state board of healing arts but who, at the time the claim was made, was no longer engaged in such residency program;

(15) subject to ~~subsection (b) of K.S.A. 40-3411(b)~~, and amendments thereto, reasonable and necessary expenses for attorney fees and other costs incurred in defending a person described in ~~paragraph (14) of this subsection (c)(14)~~;

(16) expenses incurred by the commissioner in the performance of duties and functions imposed upon the commissioner by the health care provider insurance availability act, and expenses incurred by the commissioner in the performance of duties and functions under contracts entered into between the board and the commissioner as authorized by this section; and

(17) periodically to the state general fund reimbursements of amounts paid to members of the health care stabilization fund oversight committee for compensation, travel expenses and subsistence expenses pursuant to ~~subsection (e) of K.S.A. 40-3403b(e)~~, and amendments thereto.

(d) All amounts for which the fund is liable pursuant to subsection (c) shall be paid promptly and in full except that, if the amount for which the fund is liable is \$300,000 or more, it shall be paid, by installment payments of \$300,000 or 10% of the amount of the judgment including interest thereon, whichever is greater, per fiscal year, the first installment to be paid within 60 days after the fund becomes liable and each subsequent installment to be paid annually on the same date of the year the first installment was paid, until the claim has been paid in full.

(e) In no event shall the fund be liable to pay in excess of \$3,000,000 pursuant to any one judgment or settlement against any one health care provider relating to any injury or death arising out of the rendering of or the failure to render professional services on and after July 1, 1984, and before July 1, 1989, subject to an aggregate limitation for all judgments or settlements arising from all claims made in any one fiscal year in the amount of \$6,000,000 for each health care provider.

(f) In no event shall the fund be liable to pay in excess of the amounts specified in the option selected by an active or inactive health care provider pursuant to subsection (l) for judgments or settlements relating to injury or death arising out of the rendering of or failure to render professional services by such health care provider on or after July 1, 1989.

(g) A health care provider shall be deemed to have qualified for coverage under the fund:

- (1) On and after July 1, 1976, if basic coverage is then in effect;
- (2) subsequent to July 1, 1976, at such time as basic coverage becomes effective; or
- (3) upon qualifying as a self-insurer pursuant to K.S.A. 40-3414, and amendments thereto.

(h) A health care provider who is qualified for coverage under the fund shall have no vicarious liability or responsibility for any injury or death arising out of the rendering of or the failure to render professional services inside or outside this state by any other health care provider who is also qualified for coverage under the fund. The provisions of this subsection shall apply to all claims filed on or after July 1, 1986.

(i) Notwithstanding the provisions of K.S.A. 40-3402, and amendments thereto, if the board of governors determines due to the number of claims filed against a health care provider or the outcome of those claims that an individual health care provider presents a material risk of significant future liability to the fund, the board of governors is authorized by a vote of a majority of the members thereof, after notice and an opportunity for hearing in accordance with the provisions of the Kansas administrative procedure act, to terminate the liability of the fund for all claims against the health care provider for damages for death or personal injury arising out of the rendering of or the failure to render professional services after the date of termination. The date of termination shall be 30 days after the date of the determination by the board of governors. The board of governors, upon termination of the liability of the fund under this subsection, shall notify the licensing or other disciplinary board having jurisdiction over the health care provider involved of the name of the health care provider and the reasons for the termination.

(j) (1) Subject to the provisions of ~~paragraph (7) of this subsection (j)(7)~~, upon the payment of moneys from the health care stabilization fund pursuant to subsection (c) (11), the board of governors shall certify to the secretary of administration the amount of such payment, and the secretary of administration shall transfer an amount equal to the amount certified, reduced by any amount transferred pursuant to ~~paragraph (3) or (4) of this subsection (j)(3) or (4)~~, from the state general fund to the health care stabilization fund.

(2) Subject to the provisions of ~~paragraph (7) of this subsection (j)(7)~~, upon the payment of moneys from the health care stabilization fund pursuant to subsection (c) (12), the board of governors shall certify to the secretary of administration the amount of such payment which is equal to the basic coverage liability of self-insurers, and the secretary of administration shall transfer an amount equal to the amount certified, reduced by any amount transferred pursuant to ~~paragraph (3) or (4) of this subsection (j)(3) or (4)~~, from the state general fund to the health care stabilization fund.

(3) The university of Kansas medical center private practice foundation reserve fund is hereby established in the state treasury. If the balance in such reserve fund is less than \$500,000 on July 1 of any year, the private practice corporations or foundations referred to in ~~subsection (c) of K.S.A. 40-3402(c)~~, and amendments thereto, shall remit the amount necessary to increase such balance to \$500,000 to the state treasurer for credit to such reserve fund as soon after such July 1 date as is practicable. Upon receipt of each such remittance, the state treasurer shall credit the same to such reserve fund. When compliance with the foregoing provisions of this paragraph have been achieved on or after July 1 of any year in which the same are applicable, the state treasurer shall certify to the board of governors that such reserve fund has been funded for the year in the manner required by law. Moneys in such reserve fund may be invested or reinvested in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 40-3406, and amendments thereto, and any income or interest earned by such investments shall be credited to such reserve fund. Upon payment of moneys from the health care stabilization fund pursuant to subsection (c)(11) or (c)(12) with respect to any private practice corporation or foundation or any of its full-time physician faculty employed by the university of Kansas, the secretary of administration shall transfer an amount equal to the amount paid from the university of Kansas medical center private practice foundation reserve fund to the health care stabilization fund or, if the balance in such reserve fund is less than the amount so paid,

an amount equal to the balance in such reserve fund.

(4) The graduate medical education administration reserve fund is hereby established in the state treasury. If the balance in such reserve fund is less than \$40,000 on July 1 of any year, the nonprofit corporations organized to administer the graduate medical education programs of community hospitals or medical care facilities affiliated with the university of Kansas school of medicine shall remit the amount necessary to increase such balance to \$40,000 to the state treasurer for credit to such reserve fund as soon after such July 1 date as is practicable. Upon receipt of each such remittance, the state treasurer shall credit the same to such reserve fund. When compliance with the foregoing provisions of this paragraph have been achieved on or after July 1 of any year in which the same are applicable, the state treasurer shall certify to the board of governors that such reserve fund has been funded for the year in the manner required by law. Moneys in such reserve fund may be invested or reinvested in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 40-3406, and amendments thereto, and any income or interest earned by such investments shall be credited to such reserve fund. Upon payment of moneys from the health care stabilization fund pursuant to subsection (c)(11) or (c)(12) with respect to any nonprofit corporations organized to administer the graduate medical education programs of community hospitals or medical care facilities affiliated with the university of Kansas school of medicine the secretary of administration shall transfer an amount equal to the amount paid from the graduate medical education administration reserve fund to the health care stabilization fund or, if the balance in such reserve fund is less than the amount so paid, an amount equal to the balance in such reserve fund.

(5) Upon payment of moneys from the health care stabilization fund pursuant to subsection (c)(14) or (c)(15), the board of governors shall certify to the secretary of administration the amount of such payment, and the secretary of administration shall transfer an amount equal to the amount certified from the state general fund to the health care stabilization fund.

(6) Transfers from the state general fund to the health care stabilization fund pursuant to subsection (j) shall not be subject to the provisions of K.S.A. 75-3722, and amendments thereto.

(7) The funds required to be transferred from the state general fund to the health care stabilization fund pursuant to ~~paragraphs (1) and (2) of this subsection (j)(1) and (2)~~ for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2010, June 30, 2011, June 30, 2012, and June 30, 2013, shall not be transferred prior to July 1, 2013. The secretary of administration shall maintain a record of the amounts certified by the board of governors pursuant to ~~paragraphs (1) and (2) of this subsection (j)(1) and (2)~~ for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2010, June 30, 2011, June 30, 2012, and June 30, 2013. Beginning July 1, 2013, in addition to any other transfers required pursuant to subsection (j), the state general fund transfers which are deferred pursuant to this paragraph shall be transferred from the state general fund to the health care stabilization fund in the following manner: On July 1, 2013, and annually thereafter through July 1, 2017, an amount equal to 20% of the total amount of state general fund transfers deferred pursuant to this paragraph for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2010, June 30, 2011, June 30, 2012, and June 30, 2013. The amounts deferred pursuant to this paragraph shall not accrue interest thereon.

(k) Notwithstanding any other provision of the health care provider insurance availability act, no psychiatric hospital licensed under K.S.A. 75-3307b, and amendments thereto, shall be assessed a premium surcharge or be entitled to coverage

under the fund if such hospital has not paid any premium surcharge pursuant to K.S.A. 40-3404, and amendments thereto, prior to January 1, 1988.

(l) On or after July 1, 1989, every health care provider shall make an election to be covered by one of the following options provided in this subsection ~~(l)~~ which shall limit the liability of the fund with respect to judgments or settlements relating to injury or death arising out of the rendering of or failure to render professional services on or after July 1, 1989. Such election shall be made at the time the health care provider renews the basic coverage in effect on July 1, 1989, or, if basic coverage is not in effect, such election shall be made at the time such coverage is acquired pursuant to K.S.A. 40-3402, and amendments thereto. Notice of the election shall be provided by the insurer providing the basic coverage in the manner and form prescribed by the board of governors and shall continue to be effective from year to year unless modified by a subsequent election made prior to the anniversary date of the policy. The health care provider may at any subsequent election reduce the dollar amount of the coverage for the next and subsequent fiscal years, but may not increase the same, unless specifically authorized by the board of governors. Any election of fund coverage limits, whenever made, shall be with respect to judgments or settlements relating to injury or death arising out of the rendering of or failure to render professional services on or after the effective date of such election of fund coverage limits. Such election shall be made for persons engaged in residency training and persons engaged in other postgraduate training programs approved by the state board of healing arts at medical care facilities or mental health centers in this state by the agency or institution paying the surcharge levied under K.S.A. 40-3404, and amendments thereto, for such persons. The election of fund coverage limits for a nonprofit corporation organized to administer the graduate medical education programs of community hospitals or medical care facilities affiliated with the university of Kansas school of medicine shall be deemed to be effective at the highest option. Such options shall be as follows:

(1) *OPTION 1.* The fund shall not be liable to pay in excess of \$100,000 pursuant to any one judgment or settlement for any party against such health care provider, subject to an aggregate limitation for all judgments or settlements arising from all claims made in the fiscal year in an amount of \$300,000 for such provider.

(2) *OPTION 2.* The fund shall not be liable to pay in excess of \$300,000 pursuant to any one judgment or settlement for any party against such health care provider, subject to an aggregate limitation for all judgments or settlements arising from all claims made in the fiscal year in an amount of \$900,000 for such provider.

(3) *OPTION 3.* The fund shall not be liable to pay in excess of \$800,000 pursuant to any one judgment or settlement for any party against such health care provider, subject to an aggregate limitation for all judgments or settlements arising from all claims made in the fiscal year in an amount of \$2,400,000 for such health care provider.

(m) The fund shall not be liable for any amounts due from a judgment or settlement against resident or nonresident inactive health care providers who first qualify as an inactive health care provider on or after July 1, 1989, unless such health care provider has been in compliance with K.S.A. 40-3402, and amendments thereto, for a period of not less than five years. If a health care provider has not been in compliance for five years, such health care provider may make application and payment for the coverage for the period while they are nonresident health care providers, nonresident self-insurers or resident or nonresident inactive health care providers to the fund. Such payment shall be

made within 30 days after the health care provider ceases being an active health care provider and shall be made in an amount determined by the board of governors to be sufficient to fund anticipated claims based upon reasonably prudent actuarial principles. The provisions of this subsection shall not be applicable to any health care provider which becomes inactive through death or retirement, or through disability or circumstances beyond such health care provider's control, if such health care provider notifies the board of governors and receives approval for an exemption from the provisions of this subsection. Any period spent in a postgraduate program of residency training approved by the state board of healing arts shall not be included in computation of time spent in compliance with the provisions of K.S.A. 40-3402, and amendments thereto. The provisions of this subsection shall expire on July 1, 2014.

(n) In the event of a claim against a health care provider for personal injury or death arising out of the rendering of or the failure to render professional services by such health care provider, the liability of the fund shall be limited to the amount of coverage selected by the health care provider at the time of the incident giving rise to the claim.

(o) Notwithstanding anything in article 34 of chapter 40 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto, to the contrary, the fund shall in no event be liable for any claims against any health care provider based upon or relating to the health care provider's sexual acts or activity, but in such cases the fund may pay reasonable and necessary expenses for attorney fees incurred in defending the fund against such claim. The fund may recover all or a portion of such expenses for attorney fees if an adverse judgment is returned against the health care provider for damages resulting from the health care provider's sexual acts or activity.

(p) Notwithstanding any provision in article 34 of chapter 40 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto, to the contrary, the fund shall in no event be liable for any claims against any healthcare provider based upon or relating to the healthcare provider issuing a written certification for a medical hemp preparation pursuant to Otis's law, but in such cases the fund may pay reasonable and necessary expenses for attorney fees incurred in defending the fund against such claim. The fund may recover all or a portion of such expenses for attorney fees if an adverse judgment is returned against the healthcare provider for damages resulting from the healthcare provider issuing a written certification for a medical hemp preparation pursuant to Otis's law.

Sec. 14. K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 65-2852 is hereby amended to read as follows: 65-2852. The following fees shall be established by the board by rules and regulations and collected by the board:

- (a) For a license, issued upon the basis of an examination, in a sum of not more than \$300;
- (b) for a license, issued without examination and by endorsement, in a sum of not more than \$300;
- (c) for a license, issued upon a certificate from the national boards, in a sum of not more than \$300;
- (d) for the renewal of a license, the sum of not more than \$500;
- (e) for a temporary permit, in a sum of not more than \$60;
- (f) for an institutional license, in a sum of not more than \$300;
- (g) for a visiting professor temporary license, in a sum of not more than \$50;
- (h) for a certified statement from the board that a licensee is licensed in this state,

the sum of not more than \$30;

(i) for any copy of any license issued by the board, the sum of not more than \$30;
 (j) for any examination given by the board, a sum in an amount equal to the cost to the board of the examination;

(k) for application for and issuance of a special permit under K.S.A. 65-2811a, and amendments thereto, the sum of not more than \$60;

(l) for an exempt or inactive license or renewal of an exempt or inactive license, the sum of not more than \$150;

(m) for conversion of an exempt or inactive license to a license to practice the healing arts, the sum of not more than \$300;

(n) for reinstatement of a revoked license, in a sum of not more than \$1,000;

(o) for reinstatement of a canceled license, in a sum of not more than \$500;

(p) for a visiting clinical professor license, or renewal of a visiting clinical professor license, in a sum of not more than \$300;

(q) for a postgraduate permit in a sum of not more than \$60;

(r) for a limited permit or renewal of a limited permit, the sum of not more than \$60;

(s) for a written verification of any license or permit, the sum of not more than \$25;

(t) for a reentry active license or renewal of a reentry active license, the sum of not more than \$500; ~~and~~

(u) for a resident active license, the sum of not more than \$500; ~~and~~

(v) for a medical hemp preparation certification issued under section 12, and amendments thereto, the sum of not more than \$2,000 annually. The board shall review annually the costs associated with issuing such certifications and adjust the fee to cover the costs of administering the certification program, not to exceed \$2,000 annually.

Sec. 15. K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 40-3403 and 65-2852 are hereby repealed.";

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 1, in the title, in line 2, by striking "and"; in line 3, by striking "establishments"; in line 4, after "use" by inserting "; application of the health care provider insurance availability act; certification required to recommend medical hemp preparation treatments; certification requirements; amending K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 40-3403 and 65-2852 and repealing the existing sections";

And the bill be passed as amended.

SB 495 be amended on page 1, in line 6, by striking the first "procedure" and inserting "delivery"; also in line 6, after "operation" by inserting "to deliver a living unborn child that is"; in line 12, by striking all before "delivery"; and the bill be passed as amended.

HB 2571, as amended by House Committee of the Whole, be passed and, because the committee is of the opinion that the bill is of a noncontroversial nature, be placed on the consent calendar.

Committee on **Public Health and Welfare** begs leave to submit the following report:

The following appointment was referred to and considered by the committee and your committee recommends that the Senate approve and consent to such appointment:

By the Governor:

Member, University of Kansas Hospital Authority: K.S.A. 76-3304

Mark Uhlig, term expires March 15, 2020

Committee on **Ways and Means** recommends **SB 509** be amended on page 2,

following line 7, by inserting:

"(3) Notwithstanding the provisions of sections 52 and 53 of chapter 104 of the 2015 Session Laws of the Kansas, section 18 of 2016 House Substitute for Senate Bill No. 161, this or any other appropriation act of the 2016 regular session of the legislature, the legislative budget committee may meet not more than 10 days to study and review such policies as determined by the chairperson of the committee."; and the bill be passed as amended.

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

On motion of Senator Bruce, the Senate resolved itself into Committee of the Whole, for consideration of bills on the calendar under the heading of General Orders with Senator Arpke in the chair.

On motion of Senator Arpke the following report was adopted:

On motion of Senator Arpke the following report was adopted:

SB 436; HB 2134, HB 2518, HB 2549 be passed.

A motion by Senator Francisco to amend **SB 436** was withdrawn.

A motion by Senator Francisco to amend **SB 436** failed.

HB 2134 be amended by motion of Senator Longbine: on page 6, in line 18, by striking "statute book" and inserting "Kansas register" and **HB 2134** be passed as amended.

SB 437; HB 2456, HB 2502, HB 2547, HB 2610, HB 2617, HB 2696 be amended by the adoption of the committee amendments, and the bills be passed as amended.

A motion by Senator Haley to amend **HB 2502** failed.

The committee report on **HB 2156** recommending **S Sub HB 2156** be adopted, and the substitute bill be passed.

The committee report on **HB 2441** recommending **S Sub HB 2441** be adopted, and the substitute bill be passed.

The committee report on **HB 2059** recommending **S Sub HB 2059**, as amended be adopted, and the substitute bill be passed as amended.

The committee report on **HB 2056** recommending **S Sub HB 2056**, as amended be adopted, and the substitute bill be passed as amended.

HB 2632 be amended by the adoption of the committee amendments, be amended by motion of Senator Longbine: on page 2, in line 35, by striking "statute book" and inserting "Kansas register" and **HB 2632** be passed as further amended.

SB 363 be amended by the adoption of the committee amendments, be amended by motion of Senator O'Donnell: on page 17, in line 12, by striking all after "chiropractor"; in line 13, by striking all before "or"; in line 39, by striking "and"; in line 43, after "purposes" by inserting "; and

(10) any person licensed as a physical therapist when performing dry needling, trigger point therapy or services specifically authorized in accordance with the provisions of the physical therapy practice act" and **SB 363** be passed as further amended.

SB 439 be amended by the adoption of the committee amendments, be amended by motion of Senator Smith: on page 1, in line 7, before "For" by inserting "Justices of the supreme court may be removed from office by impeachment for, and conviction of, treason, bribery or other high crimes and misdemeanors.";

On page 2, in line 5, before "For" by inserting "The governor and all other officers under the constitution of the state of Kansas shall be removed from office on impeachment for, and conviction of, treason, bribery or other high crimes and misdemeanors."

and **SB 439** be passed as further amended.

SCR 1610 be adopted.

SB 512 be amended by the adoption of the committee amendments.

S Sub HB 2509 be passed over and retain a place on the calendar.

CHANGE OF REFERENCE

Senator Denning moved **SB 512** be rereferred to the Committee on **Ways and Means**. The motion carried.

MESSAGE FROM THE HOUSE

Announcing passage of **SB 245**, as amended by **H Sub SB 245**.

The House nonconcurrs in Senate amendments to **HB 2480**, requests a conference and has appointed Representatives Schwartz, Boldra and Victors as conferees on the part of the House.

The House nonconcurrs in Senate amendments to **HB 2490**, requests a conference and has appointed Representatives Schwartz, Boldra and Victors as conferees on the part of the House.

The House accedes to the request of the Senate for a conference on **H Sub SB 255** and has appointed Representatives Barker, Macheers and Carmichael as conferees on the part of the House.

The House accedes to the request of the Senate for a conference on **SB 367** and has appointed Representatives Gonzalez, Finch and Highberger as conferees on the part of the House.

Announcing the appointment of Representatives Ryckman, Jr., Schwartz and Henry to replace Representatives Brunk, Couture-Lovelady and Tietze as conferees on **HB 2268**.

The House acceded to the request of the Senate for a conference on **SB 318** and has appointed Representatives Hedke, Corbet and Kuether as conferees on the part of the House.

The House nonconcurrs in Senate amendments to **S Sub HB 2008**, and requests a conference and has appointed Representatives Highland, Lunn and Winn as conferees on the part of the House.

The House nonconcurrs in Senate amendments to **S Sub HB 2112**, requests a conference and has appointed Representatives Barker, Macheers and Carmichael as conferees on the part of the House.

The House nonconcurrs in Senate amendments to **Sub HB 2151**, requests a conference and has appointed Representatives Barker, Macheers and Carmichael as conferees on the part of the House.

The House nonconcurrs in Senate amendments to **HB 2163**, requests a conference and has appointed Representatives Huebert, Phillips and Alcala as conferees on the part of the House.

The House nonconcurrs in Senate amendments to **HB 2164**, requests a conference and has appointed Representatives Huebert, Phillips and Alcala as conferees on the part of

the House.

The House nonconcurrs in Senate amendments to **HB 2462**, requests a conference and has appointed Representatives Gonzalez, Pauls and Highberger as conferees on the part of the House.

The House nonconcurrs in Senate amendments to **HB 2501**, requests a conference and has appointed Representatives Gonzalaz, Pauls and Highberger as conferees on the part of the House.

The House nonconcurrs in Senate amendments to **HB 2446**, requests a conference and has appointed Representatives Schwab, Kelly and Houston as conferees on the part of the House.

The House nonconcurrs in Senate amendments to **HB 2447**, requests a conference and has appointed Representatives Gonzalez, Pauls and Highberger as conferees on the part of the House.

The House nonconcurrs in Senate amendments to **Sub HB 2437**, requests a conference and has appointed Representatives Proehl, Ryckman Sr. and Lusker as conferees on the part of the House.

The House nonconcurrs in Senate amendments to **HB 2522**, requests a conference and has appointed Representatives Proehl, Ryckman Sr. and Lusker as conferees on the part of the House.

The House nonconcurrs in Senate amendments to **HB 2545**, requests a conference and has appointed Representatives Gonzalez, Pauls and Highberger as conferees on the part of the House.

The House nonconcurrs in Senate amendments to **HB 2563**, requests a conference and has appointed Representatives Proehl, Ryckman Sr. and Lusker as conferees on the part of the House.

The House nonconcurrs in Senate amendments to **HB 2615**, requests a conference and has appointed Representatives Hawkins, Dove and Ward as conferees on the part of the House.

The House nonconcurrs in Senate amendments to **HB 2622**, requests a conference and has appointed Representatives Highland, Lunn and Winn as conferees on the part of the House.

CONSIDERATION OF MOTIONS TO CONCUR AND NONCONCUR

On motion of Senator Denning the Senate nonconcurred in the House amendments to **H Sub SB 249** and requested a conference committee be appointed.

The Vice President appointed Senators Masterson, Denning and Kelly as a conference committee on the part of the Senate.

On motion of Senator Petersen the Senate nonconcurred in the House amendments to **H Sub SB 245** and requested a conference committee be appointed.

The Vice President appointed Senators Petersen, Wolf and Pettey as a conference committee on the part of the Senate.

ORIGINAL MOTION

On motion of Senator Bruce, the Senate acceded to the request of the House for a conference on **S Sub HB 2008**.

The Vice President appointed Senators Abrams, Arpke and Hensley as conferees on the part of the Senate.

On motion of Senator Bruce, the Senate acceded to the request of the House for a conference on **HB 2622**.

The Vice President appointed Senators Abrams, Arpke and Hensley as conferees on the part of the Senate.

On motion of Senator Bruce, the Senate acceded to the request of the House for a conference on **Sub HB 2151**.

The Vice President appointed Senators King, Smith and Haley as conferees on the part of the Senate.

On motion of Senator Bruce, the Senate acceded to the request of the House for a conference on **S Sub HB 2112**.

The Vice President appointed Senators King, Smith and Haley as conferees on the part of the Senate.

On motion of Senator Bruce, the Senate acceded to the request of the House for a conference on **HB 2446**.

The Vice President appointed Senators Longbine, Bowers and Hawk as conferees on the part of the Senate.

On motion of Senator Bruce, the Senate acceded to the request of the House for a conference on **HB 2615**.

The Vice President appointed Senators O'Donnell, Bowers and Kelly as conferees on the part of the Senate.

On motion of Senator Bruce, the Senate acceded to the request of the House for a conference on **Sub HB 2473**.

The Vice President appointed Senators Petersen, Wolf and Pettey as conferees on the part of the Senate.

On motion of Senator Bruce, the Senate acceded to the request of the House for a conference on **HB 2522**.

The Vice President appointed Senators Petersen, Wolf and Pettey as conferees on the part of the Senate.

On motion of Senator Bruce, the Senate acceded to the request of the House for a conference on **HB 2563**.

The Vice President appointed Senators Petersen, Wolf and Pettey as conferees on the part of the Senate.

On motion of Senator Bruce, the Senate acceded to the request of the House for a conference on **HB 2163**.

The Vice President appointed Senators Pyle, Fitzgerald and Faust-Goudeau as conferees on the part of the Senate.

On motion of Senator Bruce, the Senate acceded to the request of the House for a conference on **HB 2164**.

The Vice President appointed Senators Pyle, Fitzgerald and Faust-Goudeau as conferees on the part of the Senate.

On motion of Senator Bruce, the Senate acceded to the request of the House for a conference on **HB 2447**.

The Vice President appointed Senators Smith, Knox and Pettey as conferees on the part of the Senate.

On motion of Senator Bruce, the Senate acceded to the request of the House for a conference on **HB 2462**.

The Vice President appointed Senators Smith, Knox and Pettey as conferees on the

part of the Senate.

On motion of Senator Bruce, the Senate acceded to the request of the House for a conference on **HB 2545**.

The Vice President appointed Senators Smith, Knox and Pettey as conferees on the part of the Senate.

On motion of Senator Bruce, the Senate acceded to the request of the House for a conference on **HB 2501**.

The Vice President appointed Senators Smith, Knox and Pettey as conferees on the part of the Senate.

REPORT ON ENROLLED BILLS

SB 358 reported correctly enrolled, properly signed and presented to the Governor on March 21, 2016.

SR 1781, SR 1782, SR 1783 reported correctly enrolled, properly signed and presented to the Secretary of the Senate on March 21, 2016.

On motion of Senator Bruce, the Senate adjourned until 10:00 a.m., Tuesday, March 22, 2016.

ROSE MARIE GLATT, CHARLENE BAILEY, CINDY SHEPARD, *Journal Clerks*.
COREY CARNAHAN, *Secretary of the Senate*.

